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Independent auditor's report
L TR

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

B RAR R ARATLERA

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(FHEBIEM R BERAT)

Opinion

We have audited the separate financial statements of
Bank of China Group Investment Limited (the
"Company") set out on pages 7 to 89, which comprise
the separate statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the separate statement of profit or
loss, the separate statement of comprehensive income,
the separate statement of financial position, the separate
statement of changes in equity and the separate
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the separate financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the vear then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs™) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code™), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

BT HIHTRE (8

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

BoPREARRARATLERR
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(FEFIEEMBLERAE)

Key audit matters ("KAM")

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the cument
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to
these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying financial
statements.
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

Bor g iHmtdy (4

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

BHREAR AR AT 24RA
{Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(FEHEER S LAFIRAF)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, and for such intemmal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from marerial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going voncern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose, We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material imisstatement
when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materiat if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we

exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

W EIHTRE (8
To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

P REFERHFTRATEERR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(FHEEEMALAHIRA )

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Wi HMBEHHYME (&)
financial statements (continued)

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to frand or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtzin awndit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the pwpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the rcasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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Independent auditor's report {(continued)

BALHETHITRE (40

To the member of Bank of China Group Investment Limited

BUFREERRARA A 2ER A
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(FHBEMBAERAT)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financiul statements (continued)

» Evaluate the overall presentation. structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding. among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and signiticant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor's report is KWONG, Chun Kit.
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT

FREASRARAR

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

MiEr

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE—B-NE+_A=1+—HIL¥EE

REVENUE FROM OTHER
SOURCES

Other (loss)/gain

Operating expenses and other costs
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Fofbak FtA
Fit (GRER) M

Bl R MRE
MERHA

R
Friasl

BERE

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

2018 2017

Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
HR ERTR BETR
5 4,090,578 2,037,481
5 (1,131,124) 1,037,439
2,959,454 3,074,920

( 369,018) ( 453,223)

7 ( 610.671) {_254.446)
6 1,979,765 2,367.251
8 93,701 (_263.325)
2,073,466 2,103,926

7 HERESBTRLR



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
PR B RARA A

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Saldis

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE_F-NE+-A=+—HiL¥EE

Notes
ot
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR E i e
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H 4% &l 23
Other comprehensive income that may .
be reclassified to profit or loss in Bt E 4 AR HIIR
subsequent periods: H:
Available-for-sale investments: QiEER: e d _
Changes in fair value 2 et EZEsh 13
Related income tax effect i JE A A 20

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX FREH LA, BiERE

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #4545 41425 .40
FOR THE YEAR

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 8 PR A R AR

2018 2057
HKS'000 HKS$'000
BRI BTHTIE
2,073,466 2,103,926

21,663

- 15,591

37,254

2,073,466 2,141,180




PRREB R ARAF

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POS

MEIRIM
31 December 2018
—F-N\$+_A=+—H
2018 2017
Notes HKS$'000 HKS'000
b2 EHFT WmT5

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEHEsh Bt
Property, plant and equipment B 10 7,073 5427
Investments in subsidiaries BEFAF 11 61,056,512 62,187,153
Investments in associates and joint

ventures BEBEALESESL 12 1,614,947 1,727,492
Available-for-sale investments AIEEH R 13 . 24,190,838
Financial assets at fair value throvgh ~ GAA SOAHE TR H R A5hit

profit or loss AR AR 14 22,982,070 -
Loans to and receivables from .

subsidiaries BT 4 3 Po 8 R o 11 5398319 3.233.580
Total non-current assets Jedrsh B r= it 91,058,921 91,344,490
CURRENT ASSETS Wahr
Loans to and receivables from

subsidiaries Ffle T2 7 $e8 R sk it 11 1.684,266 546,336
Prepayments, deposits, accounts and SR AN EHRT, #E

other receivables BT L5 51,162 136,359
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRE&SFHNY 16 2.835.307 1.521.995
Total current assets LB bt _ 4.570,735 __2.204,690
CURRENT LIABILITIES #shh
Other payables and accruals AR AR R TR %A 17 471,642 313,722
Tax payable bk 2.302 229,233
Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings BT ER R 18.22 23,047,855 16,378.902
Amounts duc to subsidiaries FifF A 8] R 11 18.274.206 26,865,909
Total current liabilities i kil g 41,796,005 43,787,766
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES PS5 (37,225,270) {(41,583.076)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES BEFSHsh 6 HieaR 53,833,651 49.761.414

continued/... &/

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 9 TR ERAT



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

PRI EARAR ,
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

W HRWE
31 December 2018

—¥-NF+=A=+—H

2018 27
Notes HKS$'000 HKS'000
i3 3 wHTR HFr
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES HeHish 7 i
Bonds issued RITHRB 19 5,100,142 1,766,385
Amounts due to subsidiaries BIfFF 2R BIR i1 s 223,586
Deferred tax liabilities HIEHTERL L 20 96,158 _ maTs
Total nou-current liabilities ik ifEEY S f it 5,196,300 2.070.246
Net assets by 48,637,351 47,691,168
EQUITY B FL e
Share capital A 21 34,051,740 34.051.740
fnvestments revaluation reserve B A R _ - 617.255
Retained profits FATECFIHE 14,583,611 13,022,173
Total equity RESEET 48,637,351 47,691,168

Gong Jianzhong ZER Zhang Hung i
Director IHH Director EH

BANK OF CHINA GROUPINVESTMENT LIMITED 10 fRAARFHRAR



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT/LIM
HRREARRAERAT s
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQ

BORAIS R |
Year ended 31 December 2018
BE_R-NF+ZA=1—HILEE

Investments
revaluation
reserve Retained
Share capital 2479 O] profits 'l‘o?l
.73 #E RA4ENS A
Notes HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
b2 i Rt BHTE BHITE
Balance at 1 January 2017 201731 8 1 BRI 34,051,740 580,001 11,369,255 46.000.956
Profit for the year R - 2,103.926  2,103.926
Other comprehensive
income: Hithsr &0kt
Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale AT {4 B 2 A ft
investments H%sh 13 : 21,663 21,663
Income tax effect s - 15,591 - 15.591
Total comprehensive income
for the year FES AU LT - 37254 2,103,926  2.14L.180
IRE 2017 SEEP AN
Interim 2017 dividend 8 9 - ( 451008) ( 451,008)
20075 12 A3 AR
Balance at 31 December 2018417 184
2017 and 1 January 2018 ] 34,051,740 617.255 13.022.173 47.691.168
KA (FRWERE
On adoption of HKFRS9 Ty o5 3.3(0) . ( 617.255)  617.255 -
As restated ok 34,051,740 13.639.428  47,691.168
Profit for the year REHRE - 2075466 2073466
Total comprehensive income
for the year FEZGNHEST - 2,073,466  2,073.466
W& 2018 EHEHHG
Interim 2018 dividend B 9 - - ( 1,127,283) { 1.127,283)
Balance at 31 December 2018F 12 A 31 B&
2018 ® 34,051,740 - 14,585,611 48,637,351

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED ! R RRERAS



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT EIMITED

PREARFEFTRA R

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REWBR

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE_2-N\FE+-R=+—HILER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments:

Finance costs

Interest income

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and eyuipment

Gatine on disposai of an assoviate/ a juint
venture

Net gain on disposal of financial asset at
tuir valwe through profic or loss

Met gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Changes in fair value of fiaancial asser ut
fair value through prufit or loss

Depreciation

Management fee income from joint
venlures

{ieerense/(inergase) in propayments,
depnsits, accounts ind other receivables

{Decrease)/increase in other pavables and
actiuals

Cash used in cperations
Withholding tax paid
Interest paid

Net cash flows used in operating activities

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 12

EWEshENRETR
L IEUE

.
Wf % 3t
FBdA
A 2N

BRI N

R e Lrrie i BRI

ACHR BASY Fo fir i WSk BB Bl L A8
HE BRI 8

MEELT A TP

UL AL BT e HERE) U AR 28RN
SerE R PRl A R E T

#1H

HELLTRBI
mEds sty Wy B
Bt (B SN
T IREN AR S WA
ffnitiem 15
EHERIRE
EEPE A B b 11 05D A e ]

Notes
B

FHRIEAD AR AH

2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
T BHTR
1.979.765 2,367.251

610,671 254,446

{ 183,592) ( 179,836)
{ 3,906,976) { 1,857,484)
{ 8 5)
C 292571 ¢ 57,761)

(22904 -
(19907 ( 848976)

1,506,842 .

2,750 2,133

( 48 i 48
0997 ( 74,82%)

( 18457) $3.650
( 29346) (339455
( 118,347 ( 34458)
( 434,361) ( 193,043)
[ 843,148 (  566,956)
continued/...4E,



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LI
FREAREATRAT f

HeHRE &) S Z\

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE_2—)N\F+=-A=+—HI%E

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Dividends received

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries

Proceed from disposal of an associate / a
Jjoint venture

Increase in loans to subsidiaries

Inerease in amounts due from subsidiaries

Acquisition of a joint venture

Repayment of loans to and receivables
from subsidiaries

(Dectease)/increase in amounts due to
subsidiaries

Increase in amount due from a joint
venture

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

Purchases of financial asset at fair vahse

through profit or loss
Proceeds from available-for-sale

investments
Proceed from disposal of financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss
Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayment of loans and borrowings
Procecds from bonds issued
Dividend paid
Net cash flows frem financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank

Short-term time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months when
acquired

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
BRI BETR

126,706 1.298.305
810,320 578,159

( 4,389 { 3322
- 5

34,200 2,930,617
412,486 220457
984,927 -

- (11,178.382)

- {  948.480)

39,936 1,323,525

( 8.817.221) 1,646,890
( 7,104) ( 203)
- ( 4.241,538)

( 437.040) -
- 66336

138,312 -

( 6,718.967) { 8.307.631)
15.609.463 26,352 295
{ 8,940.510) (20,646,633)
3,333,757 1,766,385
{ 1.127,283) (  451.008)
$.875,427 7.021,039
1.313.312 ( 1,853.548)
1,521,995 3375543
2.835,307 1,521,995
964,913 1,371,995
1.870.394 150.000
2,835,307 1,521,995
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
PREFERFRAE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MERRLERE

31 December 2018

2018512 A 31 H

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Bank of China Group Investment {imited {the
"Company"”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 23/F, Bank of China Towar,
1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

The directors consider that the Company's
inunediate holding company is Bank of China
Limited ("BOC"). The Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group") are subject to the control of the State
Council of The People's Republic of China ("PRC")
Government through China Investment Corporation
("CIC"), its wholly-owned subsidiary, Central
Huijin Investment Ltd. ("Central Huijin™), and BOC
in which Central Huijin has controlling equity
interests. The Company's principal activity is
investment holding. The principal activities and
other particulars of the Company's principal
subsidiaries, material joini ventures and material
assochides are set out in notes 30. 31 and 32 to the
finavcial statements.

2.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Notwithstanding that, the Company had net current
liabilities of HK$37,225,270,000 as at 31 December
2018, the Company had sufficient resources
including unutilised comunitied banking facilitics
unutilised approved bond quotas in Shanghai Stock
Exchange (“SSE™), such that the Company will be
able to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
Consequently, the directors have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

3.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standurds ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. Hong Kong
Accounting Standards  ("HKASs") and
Intecpretations) issued by the Hong Koung Institute
of Cenified Public Accountants ("HEKICPA™),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREFAREFTRAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MERBIER
31 December 2018

20184512831 B

3.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 32 MERBsmER

The company level financial information for the #Z 2018 % 12 H 31 B1LER, AT BEE
year ended 31 December 2018 has been prepared Ft&EAHHTFEEENRS . FAFERES
for voluntary purposes. The Company, asabolding po/\ 3], Bss]a i SiRTE, F08E 20184
company, ht:_:\s pl:epaéed consolidat?d financial A 31 iSRG SRS, B, 14
statements for the Company as its stattory _ e :
AHARBHAMFEREALBREEAGRER

financial statements for the year ended 31 "~
December 2018. Consequently, this company level AEE 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILEENEE 2017 F

financial information and the comparatives donot 12 A 31 HIE SR EMFRE.
constitute the Company's statutory financial

statements for either of the years ended 31

December 2018 and 2017.

Information relating to the Company's statutory EAFHEESHMESHEHEXGETERR
consolidated financial statements required to be ¢\ F] &MY % 436 KT, FIFRMT:
disclosed in accordance with section 436 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

As the Company is a public company, itisrequired ZEXE{EAALLT, BiEE (A H %) & 662
to deliver its financial statements to the Registrar &4 (3) SARFIAT =0 E, HAEHE
of Companies as required by section 662(3) of, and g grsp st 4R, AL\ T S iHITgH TIXM4E
Part 3 of Schedule 6 to, the Companies Ordinance. MadRRE, SiMEETEEE IR,

T T o o O W&SERAAEH S ARSI, B3

consolidated level financial statements for both .

not include a reference to any matters to which the (3) MEM.
auditor drew attention by way of emphasis; and did

not contain a statement under either sections

406(2). 407(2) or (3) of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The equity method has not been applied in respect HFEEHFTEHTFTALAFEBRELVESE L
of the Company’s interests in joint ventures and Jpdifyi 2k, FRAAA T APEBITHRESETL
associates as the Company is a wholly-owned sz, HZATIRIBE R &3R5 M Vi s & 360 %
subsidiary of Bank of China Limited, which B,

prepares consolidated financial statements in

accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards.
33 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 33 StESE RIS
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Company has adopted the following new and FA T ERAEE 2 FMEHIREHTIIE

revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current HFAATAHIEREBITZ (FHEVEREE
year's financial statements, which are applicable to Yy .

the Company.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 15 R RARRARAT




BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

PHEEHARRER AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M EBRRIER

31 December 2018

20184612 B 31 H

3.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
Jrom Conmracts with Customers

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

(a) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces
HKAS 39  Financial  Instruments:
Recogmition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting  for  financial  instruments:
classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting,

The Company has applied prospectively, the
Company has recognised the transition
adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at | January 2018,
Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and coutinues to be reported
under HKAS 39.

Clussification and measurement

The following information sets out the
impacts of adopting HKFRS 9 on the
statement of financial position, including the
etfect of replacing HKAS 39's incurted
credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9°s
expected credit losses (“ECLs™) model,

BANK OF CHINA GROUF INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

Gk ik g A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MERRIERE

31 December 2018
20184 12 A 31 H

33 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)
A reconciliation between the carrying
amounts under HKAS 39 and the balances
reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January

33 SHBURRBENEE (4

#EGitaE (&)

Bk GERATENY £ 39 S BNk
MEEEN 2018 4E 1 A 1 Bk (FEH
SWEHEN)Y £ o SHEMMERMEH

2018 is as follows: HEMTF:
Original New measurement Original carrying New
m:usuremel:lt categull'ly under l:nount ul-l:ler carrying mount
Fimnncial assets ;;g‘s"g;m ul HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
S (BBMEREE (FRSTHERMD (FEMFIREE
(BibSiHEn)
SRy R MOSTHN MHITHEE M) HISTH
e HEAR L7 FRESH
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT HERTR
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables Amortised cost 1.521,995 1,520,995
REFREZFNY AR (HREE BRAE
W)
Auvailable-for-sale investments Available-for-sale Fair value through 24,190,338 24.190.838
ot investments profit or loss
BTk e BARMEH AR
Loans to and receivable from Louns asid receivables  Amortised cost 3,779.916 3.779.916
subsidiaries Radmd (BRRE RBEEE
R T AT R RRR k)
Financial assets included in Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 136,559 136.359
prepayments. deposits. pintd (WRRE #Bfemd
accounts and other receivables  (EIH)
AEERE BT, 7
& B TR AT RON P B 4R B
Financial liabilities
SR
Financial liabilitics included in ~ Amortised cost Amortised cost 313,722 313,722
other payables and accrvals  JBARRE R
BFEXMERREMER
F o e
Interest-bearing bank and other  Amortised cost Amortised cost 16,378,902 16,378,902
borrowings Bk ot ok
HEBRIT AR R AR
Amounts due to subsidiaries Amortised cost Amortised cost 27.001.495 27.091.495
BEF A F R RERAE b S
Bonds issved Amortised cost Amortised cost 1,766.385 1.766.385
BT S W

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
PEEARRATRAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MERBER
31 December 2018

2085 12 A 31 H

33 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 33 2EEEEENTE (@)
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(vontinued)
Impact on reserves and retained profits KT 5 R G R R i
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on IR CERUEA B S 5 9 2 ik
reserves and retained profits is as follows: T By e I (R mr
Investment
revaluation
reserve  Retained profits
HMEMAHE FAERIE
HKS'000 HKS'000
iR WL
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9
CHFHEM SR EAERY BB TFHAS &L
(avaitable-for-sale investment revaluation reserve under HKAS 39)
CAEBEHHEND) B39 S TR SREEHNEES)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39
(HFESTELNY F395THE 20074 12 A 31 A48 617,225 13,022,173
Reclassification of financial assets trom available-tor-sale investinents to
financial assets at fair vahue through profit or loss
e LIRS 8 4 3 ) B I R ol o B = A o T ARGy &
i ( 617,223) 617,225
Balance as at | January 2018 under HKFRS 9
(HFEMFMEELD EoOSTEHE 201841 5 | AMURE -

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 18 PERFRBRATRAT



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FREAEHETRAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MERRER
31 December 2018

2018512 831 H

33

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
{continued)

Hedge accounting

The new hedge accounting rules under
HKFRS 9 aligns the accounting for hedging
instruments wmore closely with the
Company’s risk management practices. No
hedge accounting is adopted by the
Company.

Changes to the impairment

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
including loans to and receivable from
subsidiaries, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits, accounts and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents
the expected credit loss is based on the 12-
month expected credit loss. This represents
the portion of lifetime expected credit loss
that results from default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since crigination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime expected credit
loss. Management has closely monitored the
credit qualities and the collectability of other
financial assets at amortised cost and
considers that the expected credit loss is
immaterial.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
FERERSRARAR
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEBRER
31 December 2018

201856 12 A 31 H

3.3

(b)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
{continued)

HKFRS 15 and Amendments establish a (b)

new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects 1o
be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services fo a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
siructured approach to measuring and
recognising revenue.

The Company has adopted HKFRS 15
using the modified retrospective method of
adoption.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no
significant impact on the Company
financial statements as the majority of the
Company’s revenue including  interest
income and dividend income are not within
the scope of this standard.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
HREFRBERAR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MHRBIEE

31 December 2018

20085 12 A1 H

33 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 33 SilEBREBNERE (&)

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, provides guidance on (c)

how to determine the date of the transaction
when applying HKAS 21 to the situation
where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and
recoghises a non-monetary asset or
liability. The interpretation clarifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date
on which an entity initially recognises the
non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment)
or non-mongetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or
receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recopnising the related item, the
entity must determine the transaction date
for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. The interpretation has had
no impact on The Company’s financial
statements as The Company’s accounting
policy for the determination of the
exchange rate applied for initial recognition
of non-monetary assets or non-monetary
liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interpretation.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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BANK OF CHINA GROUF INVESTMENT LIMITED
FREARHFRAF
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR
31 December 2018

20185F 12 A 31 H

3.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 34 OSiARERERMN (BEUHEHMEE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL JiT))

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company has not applied the following new KA F HRTZEMEMBENTZH T CLaR A
and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are {5 4 s A= 3 it 35 1 52 REETIKEEBM &S
not yet effective, in these financial statements. HENY . FEHHIE MBS EITE (B KR

Among the new and revised HKFRSs, the following D FE—Q N
are expected to be relevant to the Company’s M) i, DA FR— AR 2 A M 55 4

L S a e |
financial statements upon becoming effective: S HERHNER
Amendments to HKFRS 9 (R o8 iEin
Prepayment Features with Negative VL T A
Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (HAEMFREEMY 8 10 S/ (Fikd
(2011) VERY 28 Y (20114E) (BT
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an RFESHEBEE P45 P2 08
Investor and its Associate or Joint PR AR A 2
Venture’
HKFRS 16 {FHEMEFIRGHERY 165
Leases’ !

' Effective for annual perinds beginning on or U 20194E | A | BERZ BG4 AE e

after 1 January 2019 #

! No mandatory etfective date vet determined but 2 k£ E Skt 4 A, (a) s
available for adoption.
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FRAEASHERAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MERREE
31 December 2018

2018¢E 12 31 B

34 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Company is
described below.

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases
- Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition. measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases.

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40 Investment Property and to
which the fair value model in applied, or relates to a
class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model in applied and the lessee elects to
apply that model to the right-of-use asset, The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. HKFRS 16 also requires lessees
to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17. The Company expects to adopt HKFRS
16 on 1 January 2019,
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

FPREASRERAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M HMBRERE
31 December 2018

20185128318

3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Company
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has. directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Company considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee:

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements: and

(¢) the Company's voting rights and potential

voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost Jess any impairment losses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Company has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.
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BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ERAREERAT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEBREEE
31 December 2018

20184612 B 31 R

3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results of an associate and a joint venture are
included in the Company's statement of profit or loss
to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's investments in an associate and a
joint venture ate treated as non-current assets and
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
CUTTENCY.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, or the
exchange rates that approximate the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Exchange
differences arising from the settlement of such
transactions are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the financial reporting date are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Exchange differences arising from the
retranslation at the year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICTES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are
translated using the foreign exchange rates at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in foreign
currencies are translated using the foreign exchange
rates at the date the fair value is determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair vatue is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through

profit or loss. Regular way purchases and sales of

financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that
is. the date when the Company commiits to purchase
or sell the assets.

Classification and measurement

(i) Under HKFRS 9

Debt instruments are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method,
subject to impairment if the assets are held for
the collection of contractual cash flows where
those contractual cash flows represent solely
pavments of principal and interest.

Debt instruments are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if the
assets” contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest and the
assets are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets. Such
financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value with any gains or losses from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and
reversal. foreign exchange gains and losses and
interest calculated using the effective interest
rate method which are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from
other comprehensive income to profit or loss
when the financial asset is derecognised.
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35

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

()

(i)

Under HKFRS 9 (continued)

Debt instruments that do not meet the eriteria
for amortised cost or as financial assets at fair
value though other cotnprehensive income are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
interest incotne for tiwse finaneial assets is
included in finance income.

Equity investments are measured at fair valye
theough profit or loss unless, on initial
recognition, the Company has irrevocably
elected to designate such investments that are
not held for trading as equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends of such investments are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the
Company’s right to receive payment is
established. Changes in the fair value of such
investments  are  recognised in  other
comprehensive income and are never recycled
1o profit or loss even when the assets are sold.

Under HKAS 39

Financial assets are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss if held
for trading, or upon initial recognition are
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss. Such investments are recognised initially
at fair value, with transaction costs tuken
directly to the statement of profit or loss, and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Gains and losses from changes in the fair value
are recognised in profit or loss as they arise,
together with the related interest income and
expenses and dividends.
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35 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

(ii) Under HKAS 39 (continued)

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and
receivables. They are initially recorded at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less impairment allowances.

Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and
unlisted equity securities and debt securities.
Such investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Available-for-saie
financial investments are initially measured at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are remeasured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised as
other comprehensive income in the investment
revaluation reserve until the securities are
either sold or impaired. On disposal of
available-for-sale securities, cumulative gains
or losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and removed from the investment
revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unquoted equity
securities cannot be reliably measured because
(i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that
investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating the
fair value, such securities are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment

{i) Under HK¥RS 9

The Company applics the expected credit Joss
inodel on all the financial assets that are subject
to impairment. financial guarantee contracts,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 and lease
receivables under HKAS 17, For account and
other receivables without a significant financial
component, the Company applies the
stmplified approach which requires impairment
allowances to be measured at Jifetime expected
credit losses.

For other financial assets, impairment
allowances are recognised under the general
approach where expected credit losses are
recoguised in two stages. For eredit exposures
where thera has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. the
Company is required to provide for credit
losses that result trom possible defult events
within the next 12 months. For those credit
exposurcs where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
4 loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining lite of the
exposure irrespective of the timing of the
defauli.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment (continued)

(i) Under HKAS 39

The Company recognises losses for impaired
loans promptly where there is objective
evidence that an impairment of a loan or a
portfolio of loans has occurred. Impairment
allowances are assessed either individually for
individually significant loans or collectively for
loan portfolios with similar credit risk
characteristics including those individually
assessed balances for which no impairment
provision is made on an individual basis.

If, in a subsequent period. the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

If an available-for-sale financial asset
measured at fair value is impaired. an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and
its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through
profit or loss. Increases in their fair values after
impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the
statement of profit or loss, if the increase in the
fair value of the instrument can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment (continued)

(ii) Under HKAS 39 (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred for
unquoted equity investments measured at cost
less impairment, the amount of the loss is
measurad as the difference between the asset's

carrying amwount and the present value of

estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Derecognition
Under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39

Financial assets arc derecognised when the
tights to receive cash flows from the assers
have expired; or whete the Company has
transferred its contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of the financial assets and has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership: or where control is not
retained.

Financiat liabilities

Financial liabilities include bank and other
borrowings, trade payables, accruals and other
mongtary liabilities. They are initially recognised
at the fair value of the consideration received less
directly attributable transaction costs. Afier initial
recognition, they are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial labilities are derecognised when they are

extinguished, i.e. when the obligation is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its equity investments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Lavel 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2-- based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observabie, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole} at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-finuncial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the
Company makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value dess costs of disposal and its value in
use. In assessing value in use. the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that retlects current
market assessinents of the time value of money and
the risks specitic to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash nflows largely independent of
thuse trom other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-
generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. The

impairment loss is reversed if there has been a.

favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of the
impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment ioss been recognised in prior years. The
reversal of the impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which it
arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Company
if:
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
{i)  has control or joint control over the
Company;
{ii)  has significant influence over the
Company; or
(iii) is a member of the key management
parsonnel of the Company or of a
parent of the Company;
or
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
the party is an entity where any of the (b) EHA—PMXKEEXH, HFAUTHM—

following conditions applies:

(b

iy
(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(viD)

(viif)

the entity and the Company are
members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Company are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Company or
an entity related to the Company;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(@)

a person identified in (a)i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to the parent of the
Company.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property. plant and equipment and depreciation
Items of property plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is caleulated on a straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
usetul life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are us follows:

Leasehold improvements
HEYMRILIE
Furniture and equipments
ZE R &

Motor vehicles

EHITH

The gain or loss on disposal of items of property.
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

The asscts' residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method we veviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or
contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether
the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset and whether the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

Operating lease payments, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are recognised as an expense
in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject io an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Company's cash
mattagement.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits. and assets similar
in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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35 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present value
at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the oceurtence or non-occurrence of
one or more uneertain future events not wholly within
the contrel of the Company. 1t can also be a present
obligation arising from past evemts that is not
racognised because it {3 not probable that an outtlow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Income tax

necome tax comprises current and deferred tax,
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or oss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are incasured at the aniount expected to
be recovered Trom or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting  perod, taking into  consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Company operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or Hability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transactton, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with investments
in suvbsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporarv differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
Tosses can be utilised, except:

® when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss: and
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3.8 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax {continued)

L 4

i respeet of  deductible  temporary
differences associated with investments
in  subsidiarics, associates and joint
ventures. deferred tax assets are only
recogaised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will
reverse 11 the foresecable future and
taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary ditterences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
wtilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
availuble to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
10 be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax ussets and deterred tax liabilities are
offset if and only if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simnultaneously, in cach future periad
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
labilities or assets are expected to be sattled or
recovered,
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Orther income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
sharcholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following basis:

dividend income, when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been
established;

interest income. on an accrual basis using the
cffective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

management fee income, on a time
proportion basis over the contract terms.

@

(b)

(c)
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3.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Emplovee benefits
Retivemen! bengfit vosis

The Company opirates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Company in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees' basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or toss as and when the
contributions fall due.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continuaily evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions
The Company makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates may not equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a
signiticant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

Fuair value of financial instruments

The Eair value of tinancial instrwments that are not
guoted in active markets are determined by using
valuation techniques, When the present value of the
future cash flow of investments can be reliably
estimated, they are calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flow at its weighted average
cost of capital. When the present value of the future
cash {low of investments cannot be reliably
estimated, their fair values are estimated with
reference to the net asset value of the latest financial
information of the investee company adjusted by the
fair value difference identified on individual assets
and liabilities. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and future cash
flows are reviewed pariodicaliy.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)
Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued
based on a market-based valuation technique as
detailed in note 27 to the financial statements. The
valuation requires the Company to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select the
price multiple. in addition, the Company makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Company classifies the fair value
of these investments as Level 3. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2018
was HK$22,981,428,000 (2017;: HK$15,313,942,000).
Further details are included in note 27 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tex asset

Management judgement is required to assess the
probability of whether future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax credits can be
utilised. Management's assessment is frequently
reviewed and additional deferred tax assots are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Significant judgements in applying the entity's
accounting policies

Impairment assessment of subsidiaries, joint
ventures, associates and loans and receivables

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment, particularly in assessing whether
the objective evidence for impairment exists as a
result of the occurrence of the one or more events
indicating that the related assets values may not be
recoverable. Events that come to the attention of the
management included: defaults or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, signals of significant
financial difficulty, decrease in the projected
performance and the resulting future cash flow,
adverse changes in the payments statues of the
creditors, and national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defauits on the underlying assets
held in the investee company, etc.
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4,  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

{continued)

Significant judgements in applying the entity's
accounting policies (continued)

Impairment assessment of subsidiaries, joint
vemtures, associgtes and loans and receivables
{continued)

If management has determined that objective
evidence for impairment exists, expected future
cash flows are estimated based on observable data
obtained and impairment is assessed in accordance
with the Company's accounting policy.

Determination of the classification of investments

The Company tollows the guidance of relevant
accounting standards and classifies its investments
in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, financial
assets at tair value through peofit or loss and loans
wnd  receivables. This  determination  requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
management colleets and evaluates evidence to
determine the existence of significant intluence or
coatrol. purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired, the substance of the participation in its
investee  companies.  This  evidence includes
representation on  the board of  directors,
participation in policy-making processes, material
transaction with the investee, interchange of
managerial personnel and provision of essential
technical information. Judgement is applied in
determining whether these evidences can affect the
Compatiy's power (0 participate in the financial and
aperating policy decisions of the investee company.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER 5. WA Al (HKR) s
(LOSS)/GAIN

Revenue from other sources includes dividend HfbdifUgA, AIERTAEUA. FIEKA.

income and interest income.

An analysis of revenue and other (loss)/gain is as Uit A R4l REY Wi

follows:

2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS$'000
®HTT EBRETRE
Revenye from ather sources A E AN
Dividend income from: 2350 9
- Subsidiaries «  FAH 3120314 1,279,325
- Joint ventures - BELY 6,033 27,480
- Associates - BB 49,757 14,503
- Financial assets at fair value through - BL& fedr i HF AZRZS0Y
profit or joss SrmyEre 730,872 .
- Available-for-sale investments - ATdtmfEiEy . 536.176
Tnterest income QN 183.592 179.836
Others H Al 10 161
Other (loss)gain i (%) ey
Changes In fair value of financial assetat A& ARG H B H Bt
fair value through profit or loss AR SFBErnL R
W EZES) (1.506,842) -
Net gain on disposal of financial asset at foir 4% B2 fo 4t 5HE B R
value through profit or loss B AR SRy
2 22,904 -
Net gains on disposals of subsidiaries R/ TAT S 19,907 848,976
Net gains on disposals of an associate S BB el )l 25 292,573 -
Net gains on disposals of joint ventures BREECLHTS . 57.761
Net gain on disposals of property, plant and & B0 & B2 B2 1 25
equipment 8 5
Net foreign exchange differences iC Rk is 29,451 130,648
Others HKit 10,875 49
(1,131,124 1,037,439
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Company's profit before tax is arrived at after

charging:

Depreciation
Minimurn {2use pavment under operating
leases
Stalf costs {including directors’
retnuneration):
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind
Other emoluments
Pension scheme contributions

Legal and professional fees

7.  FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest expettse in respect of
Bank borrowings
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
Bonds issued
Amounts due to subsidiarics
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2018
HKS'000
T T

2,750
35,853

111,493
124,894

9,421

245.308

46,095

18
HKS'000
T

183,305
278.877
116,504

31,985

610,671

FRREIS R AT RAT

A RBNREZ L TR BWIORM T

2017
HKS'000
i

2,133

32,544

4,779
140.681
e
265,469

101,098

2017
HKS'000
T

39,276
125,103
41,143
48,924
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8. INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made as the Company did not generate any
assessable profits for arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2017: Nil). Income tax on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Company operates and
invests.

The Company's gross dividend income and certain
interest income are subject to PRC withholding tax

Frias

H TR A TFEFLEBME TR, JkE
BEEXRATERHRERLWHREHR (2017: ).
HihEFAHE s S RiEAEELSEY
HIZE IR AR R AR B R A L AR
2HE.

£ 2 TR BRARREF BB RIZRPEA
RANERMRRFELMSN, BN S%E

at rates ranging from 5% to 10%. 10%.
2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
whHTT BHTR
Current tax for the year: =1 U -

- Current tax for the year - ZEFEE : -
Withholding tax: IR TR .

- Withholding tax for the vear - fE I AT ( 111,584) 278916
Deferred tax BERRR 17.883 { 15,591)
Total & ( 93.701_) 263.325
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8. INCOME TAX (continued) 8. BB (4

R R B AR SR BT TR A B R
Sk B B 78 B0 22 B A 18 1 3 TR B

A reconciliation of the tax applicable to profit
before tax at the stawtory rate to the tax
cxpenses at the effective tax rate is as follows:

T
2018 2017
HKS'000 HES$'000
TR ETTT
Profit before tax Bl R 1,979.765 2,367,251
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5%  HOEAI B 16.5%H 5169 LAY
{2017: 16.5%) 40 (2017 16.5%) 326,661 Y5V
Expenses not deductible for tax ENGE A 396,970 102,786
Income not subject to tax RSN { 736519 { 507.291%
‘Lax ctfect of other allowances that are B4 B 8T SR8 AT HLHUGEY E ok 5k
deductible in determining taxabie A AR IE BT T AR
profit but not reconised as deferred gy
1ax asset _ . ) ( 295) { 336}
Tax effect of uanged b losses not H A RFF TR A B
recopnised Pygiki] 13,183 14,245
Foreign withtiolding tax SRR R {_ 93,701) 263,325
lax (erestit)charge at the effective rate 25T -4 790 RFEE S TF B A BT
of -4.7% (201 7: 11.1%) BREEREZE (2017:
11.1%) { 93,701) 263,325

The Company has cumulative tax losses arising in
Hong Kong of HKS$792,113,000 (2017:
HK$712,221,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against its future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
cumulative tax losses as the opinion of directors,
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.
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A 4wl F 4l R AR % 5 BT
792,113,000 5t (2017: ¥l 712,221,000 &) .
TR 55 5 1 AT HE T AR 0 BB AT S A B
BREE SR . A2 B EHHA LA 4E FEBR 1R AR #E 41
TR 5 5 B0 B SRS R 9 T P AR T
PEAN K, MR BEIZIRR % T BRI 197 (14 8 B
BpLE
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9. DIVIDENDS 9. MR
2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
Ll TR
Interim — HK$3.31 (2017: HK$1.32)  F¥ — #3317 (2017, &
per ordinary share 132 75) S¥%iER 1,127,283 451,008
10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 10. @
EQUIPMENT
Lenschold Furniture
improvements and Motor
ABRYYHE  equipments vehicles Total
IE XRAREE ENIAR &t
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
T wHTx BTk BATx
31 December 2018 WIsfE12ANH
At31 December 2017and ot 2017 4F 12 F 31 HAO
1 January 2018: 2018€E1 A1 H:
Cost 7. 16,507 19,139 3,763 41,409
Accumulated depreciation  WRiHFIB ( 15.958) ( 14,527) ( 5497  ( 35982)
Net carrying amount iR 549 4,612 266 5427
At ] January 2018.netof 2018514 1H.
accumulated depreciation ST IR SRR 549 4,612 266 5427
Additions i 390 4.006 - 4,394
Depreciation provided
during the year +ERiA ( 33% { 2247 ( 168) { 2.750)
As 31 December 2018, netof 2018 fF 12 31 8, M
accumulated depreciation B RHEFIBE KIS 604 6371 98 7,073
At 31 December 2018: 2018£E 12 A 31 H:
Cost %N 16,897 23,061 5.763 45,721
Accumulated depreciation RidrR { 16,293) { 16,650) { 5.665) { 38.648)
Net carrying amount Wi 0% 604 6,371 98 7.073
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2085 1231 R

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 December 2017 20174128318

At 31 December 2016 andat 2016 F 12 H 31 B 12017
| January 2017: EECREC

Cost g
Accumulated depreciation E-Sagiidlt|

Net carrying amount BT

At 1 January 2017, nei of 2007 LH1H, A%

accumnulated depreciation 7 IHIEERE R E
Additions N
Disposals ng
Depreciation provided HEARIR

during the vear

As il December 2007, netof 2017812 31H. 1k

acvumulated depreciation o T e T [
At 31 December 2017: 2017512A318:
Cost BUE

Accumulated depreciation Bit#7IR

Net carrying amount AR

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LINUTED

10. [ (8

Leasehold  Fyrniture

improvements and Motor

W R  equipments vehicles Total
I ARRE EHTR &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS"000 HK3'000
EhTrx ®WHTR BREFL i
16,507 16,023 5,763 38,293
(_15.,681) (13424) (49500 (M09
86 _ 2599 813 4,238

826 2,599 813 4238

- 3,322 - 33
(2™ ( 1309) (34T (2133
549 4,612 266 5427

16.507 19,139 5,763 41,409
( 15,958) ( 14,527) ( 5,497) { 35,982)

549 4,612 266 542
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11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11. #&®T4A#H

Investment in subsidiaries
Unlisted shares, at costs
Less: Inprirment losses

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note

(b))
Less: Impairment losses

Investments in subsidiaries

Non-current assets
Loans tv and receivables from
subsidiaries (note (a))

Current ssscts
Loans to and receivables from
subsidiaries {note (a))

Current linbilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note

<))

Non-current {iabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries {note
(ch)

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED sl

#ETAH
e RS, Bk
o W&

B2 RSB (EERR(B))
W WRERE

BRTLH

JEFish & =
R A ERAEI GEE
{a)}

b
Bl ASHREREKE (8
(a))

Hah i
BHFARKS GER()

A sl &
RefFATFIR (EFE(C))

2018
HKS$'000
BHTRT

21,061.418
( 647,038)
20,414,380

41,064,468
{ 422,336)

_5:398319

1,684,266

18,274,206

HIRMER AR AT

2017
HKS$'000
®’HTE

21.061,530
{ 647,020)
_20414510

42,194,978
( 422,335)

41,772,643

62,187,153

3233580

546,336

26,865.909

225,586
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1.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
{continued)

#|ETFAT &)

The movements in provision for impaicment of & ¥ -F2 & i &5 ¥,

investment in subsidiaries are as follows:
2018 2017
HKS$'000 HKS'000
Wit 31 e
At 1 January WM B 647,020 646,702
Eachunge ditference ARG BT Y S ST G 18 318
At 31 December T A3 647,038 647,020
The movements in provision tor impairment of FYI-T 4 &) S0T0wk (v £ BT,

amounts due tfrom subsidiaries are as follows:
2018 2017
HKS$'000 HKS'900
Ll 31tk
At | January TR 422335 421,086
Exvhange differonee M v B T R IR S ] 1 1,249
At 31 Degember SEFREH 422,336 422,335

Notes:

(a)

amounted  to  HK7,082,385,000 (2017:
HK$3,779,916,000), comprises
US$10,028.060 (equivalent to
HK$78,487,000) (2017:  US$12,942,000
(equivalent to HK$101.252.0000),
RMRBS35,045,478,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,730,150,000) {2017:
RMB2,032,032,000 {equivalent to

HK$2,404,707,000)) and HK$1,273,948,000
(2017: HKS$1,273,957,000) which bear
interest at 6 month LIBOR+5% and 1.95% to
7.89% per annum (2017: 6 month
LIBOR+0.5% and 2.16% to 5.66% per
anoutn), with the maturity ranging from 2019
to 2026.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

TEFE:
Loans to and receivables from subsidiaries (a) M F A @ FRE KW S Hm AT

52

7,082,585,000 754 2017: ;1T 3.779.916.000
J6) , HIEHEIT 10,028,000 (I EE T
78,487,000 JC) (2017: 3&ic 12,942,000,
Hi 303 R 101,252,000 5E) . AR D
3,045,478,000 5T (A EHt il 5.730,150,000
JE) 22017 ARTI 2.032,032,000 72, 4
BT 2404707000 3¢ v % H
1,273.948,000 502017 3 1,273.957.000
£ HWHEMET 6 4 F LIBOR+5%FI
1.93% T 7.89%:2. /8 (2017: JLIERIE K 6
A~ LIBORH0.5% N 2.16% % 5.66% 7

M, FUMEE A 2019 A2 E 2026 4F
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11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11.
(continued)

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries are (b)
unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the amounts due from subsidiaries
are considered as part of the Company's
investments in its subsidiaries. Where the
loans to subsidiaries are not part of the
Company's investments in subsidiaries, they
should be presented as a separate line item
with relevant disclosures in accordance with
HKFRS 7.

(¢} Except for the amounts due to subsidiaries (c)
amounted to HK$1.348,280,000 (2017:
HK$1.359,935,000) which bear interest
ranged from 2.50% 10 3.63% (2017: 0.97%
to 3.63%) per annum and mature in 2019, the
amounts are unsecured, interest tree and
repayable on demand.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

12. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 12.
AND JOINT VENTURES

Investments in associates (note (a)) FHHEEE N (GER(a))
Investments in joint ventures (note AW (FERD))
(b))
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VETFLAF (8

BE20184 12831 HE2017E 12 8
31 H, M FAR RS, 2B &L
B sERRKR. AAREH LA, BT
AT BBETRENEFTAFRRETA
AIM—ES. MHEPFASEERTHIA
BAATREFAFNH—HLY, HB(F
HFRERELN) £ 7S5HME. BN
RIBHEAHERE, HHEANMAREH
Tle

ERRfT AR BRI & BE T 1,348,280.000
JT (2017: #7H 1,359,935,000 7&) HIEF
FH 2.50%ZE 3.63%Z 1A (2017: 0.97%E
3.63%). BIHAH¥T 2019 &, HibRftT
AT AXIE. &8, LEEERH
PR

EBT LT HAFIREY FIRBER 30.

BREELVEESELL

2018 2017

HKS$'000 HK$'000

¥ BTt

104.631 224,544

1510316 1.502.948

1,614,947 1,727.492

FRMARFARA S
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20185FE 12 A 31 H

12. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 12. EBRBRELUVESEMSY 2
AND JOINT VENTURES (continued) '

(@) lnvestments in associates (a) W|ABEW

2018 2017

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

i+ i

Investments, at cost HEHBEEAL, @k 104,631 224,544
Amount due from an associata SR el 20 1,250 1,239
Less: Impairment losses e WEEE A 1.250) 1239
104,631 224,544

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, REVCER S L BRI AR | 6 B % — 2 ER Y

interast-free and repavable on demand. g

Details of materral associates are set out in note 32 B ST WM VIR T RSB TR 32,
to the financial statements.

(o)  Investments in joint ventures (b) HESFERL
2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
BHTR T A
[nvestments, at cost HESE bk, ERE 1,524,519 1,517,493
Less: Impairment losses wh: wEER (17463) ( 17,463)
1.507,056 [, 300,030
Amount due froa a joint venture  MEY S b i 25,130 24,788
Less: lmpairment loss W HEEE (21879 { 21,870)
3260 2918
1,510.316 1,502,948

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured. WY& 8 AR TN A ERA . FHER 1%
bheurs interest at 1% (2017: 1%) per annum and  (2017: 19%) Fil- 45 35 R 545,
repavable on demand. '

Details of material joint ventures are set out in note  FHE&E ol B FIREM HHMETR 31.
31 to the financial statements,
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13. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 13.  WHHERE
INVESTMENTS
2018 2017
HKS$'000 HKS'000
EHTT #ETHTT
Available-for-sale investments o

A fair value AR - 13,773.051
At cost £147 7.3 - 8.875.500
. 22,648,551
Unlisted debt instrument E M6 8 e - 1,542,287

- 24,190,838

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the ZR4ERF, ARAT A KABLE S I SRR
Company’s financial assets recognised in other BHUNTE (2017: #:H 21,663.000 7T) -
comprehensive income amounted to nil (2017:

HK$21,663,000. .

The debt instrument has no fixed maturity date and {72V A B RS H, HEEKHK 8.5%.
8.5% per annum coupon rate.

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 14. LDAfir{EiEE AT ARBNS
VYALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR kg e
LOSS
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS'000
BT WHETR
Financial assets at fair value B fafr B3 | B E 2kt AR
through profit or loss RIS R =
- Equity investments - 20,960,809
- Debt instruments - B 2,021,261

22,982,070 -

The debt instrument has no fixed maturity date and  {fFU4LE A EERME, B4 S 2% 8.5%.
8.5% per annum coupon rate.
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15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, 15. MW EASWERIR, #e R TR
ACCOUNTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

018 2017

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

itk A #;MTT

Accounis receivable [V e 41,174 97,125

L.ess: Loss allowance for
impairment of accounts reccivable ik PG {EHES (39.684) { 39,692)
Accouunts receivabie, net BRI - R 1,490 57,433
Deposit: e 833 1,227
Interest receivables MY FR 44252 23
Prepayments Siaaprer ] 4,587 77,676
51,162 136,359
The movements in the loss allowance for MW ERZTNNT.:
impairment of accounts receivable are as follows:

2018 2017

HEK$'000 HKS'000

wHTT TR

At January I 39,692 39,682
Exchange difference R & BT E S TR T WA «C % o
At 31 December S5 40 39.692

included in the above loss allowance for
impairment of accounts receivable is an allowance
for individually impaired accounts receivable of
HK$39,684,000 (2017: HK$39,692,000) with a
carrying  amount  before  allowance  of
HK$39,684,000 {2017: HK$39,692.000).

The individually impaired accounts receivable
relate to debtory thut were in financial ditficulties or
were in detault in both iaterest and/or principal
pavments and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

Except tor loss uliowance for impairment of
accounts receivable of HK$39.684,000 (2017:
HK$39.692,000), none of the above assets is either
past due or impaired during the year (2017: Nil),

BANK GF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

39,684

F AR RO R I v & b, A4 | BT TR
W8 & ik T 39,684,000 T (2017: HEd
39,692,000 7T, XA AUk T 5 T
U AT 39,684,000 7202017 {#:1T 39,692,000
e

b fH

EELI 5 B LRI R HE o S e R P
FRAESCCATIT ) BRs A g, vk U
1] 0 9 IR

[RiAE M 39,684,000 7CHY AU &L #E & LA 4
(2017: i 39.692.000 5T) . AEEHA AR
FEIR U R (2017 ).
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16. CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS  16. H&ZAL5MY

2018 2017
HKS$'000 HKS'000
b ] o EHTR

Cash at bank with: WITRREF
Other financial institutions Hib&RH A 1.197 15310
Branches of the immediate BRERBATZ AT 140.538 147,290

holding company

A fellow subsidiary [ RFaE £23,178 1,209.395
964.913 1,371,995
Short-term bank deposits SEREEHTERL 1.870,394 150,000
2,835,307 1.521.995

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the imimediate cash
requirements of the Company, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

17.

Accrued interest on loans from

fellow subsidiaries R &TF2 555 H R
Accrued interest on bank

borrowings FI4RAT fE 3K A AT ) B
Accrued interest on bonds issued  BATEFRAIR{TF QD
Creditors and accrued expenses R B A
Receipts in advance B (L& el

Creditors and accrued expenses and receipts in
advance are non-inferest-bearing and have an
average term of less than 1 year.
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WTH SRR RIT B ERF R HEz AR
B. RBAARNEETEETR, EHERTFER
BRI —REZAARE, AR REE
FHRET R RITEREENFRETHT

R BRI R ENT R AR AT
17. HAWRAEOH & MRt
2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
wmT T EBHFT
FF B 167,721 28.045
13,530 8.212
72,357 40973
217.974 236.427
60 65
471,642 313,722

R 8 RO o B R T3
HF—4E,

57 HEREAREFRAR



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
HREANRERAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MEREBLE

31 December 2018
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18.

Current iiabilities:
Loans from fellow subsidiaries (note
{a))
Bank borrowings (note (b))

Notes:

(a)

(b)

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

LB F

As at 31 December 2018, the balances
included unsecured loans from two fellow
subsidiaries of HK$3,467,000,000 (2017
HK$1,667.000,000) and US$1,100.000.000
{equivalent to HK$8.609.370,000) (2017:
UiS$801.000.000 (equivalent to
HK$6,238,480.000)).

The loans repavable are unsecured and
currying faterests at tloating rate of 1 month
HIBOR to | month HIBOR plus 1.20% and
a Roating rate of same period LIBOR (2017:
floating rate of same period HIBOR to
HIBOR plus 1.05% and a floating rate of
same period LIBOR).

The bank borrowings are advanced from
third party banks, repayable within one vear,
unsecured and carrying interests at | month
HIBOR plus 1.1% and ! month LIBOR plus
1.2% to 1.3% (2017: 1 month HIBOR plus
L1% to 1.5%). The Company's ultimate
holding company, BOC has guaranteed
certain of the Company's bank loans up to
HK$1,500 million (2017: HK$7,339
million).
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FIE R T ARMER (R
AT QR

18. HEMRITEREIE MM
2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'006
BHFE  BTTRE
12,076,370 7,925,480
16,971,485 8,433,422
23,047,855 16,378,902

iER:

(a) FRZE 2018%E 12 H 31 B, {HEsa¥aE

(®)

58

P [E] 3 -F A R EHA R, REURHET
3,467,000,000 T 2017 471 1,667.000,000
JC0 0 BRIESEIE 1,0100,000,000 « 245
M 8,609,370,000 7.) (2017 #F: ¢
800,000,000 (HFTHET 6,258,480,000
L)) .

RETEICATIRIPER, RITRRE—
4~ H HIBOR Z—/* B HIBOR+1.20%%:%
A ZFL A FEW LIBOR F3hfERE

(2017: [ HIBOR £ HIBOR+1.05%49
LRI CLL ) LIBOR (s FIEe) &

T ER RO FE=H0T, TN
IL#, 4R, 4% -1 HIBOR+1.1%
AR R R -4 H O LIBORFL2% %
L3% s Rl ke Bz L ©2017: -4
Fi HIBOR+1.1% & 1.5%:2[]) . ANH
HYIRZEERE A 8], J R O g A 2 ]
FrTHRIT RS TAMET 15 {208 (2017 4
i1 73.39 42900
PEEALEERAT
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19. BONDS ISSUED

Jeimh A MRS

Non-cuirent portion

In 2018, the Company issued notes of RMB3.0
billion (equivalent to HK$3.4 billion) additionally,
which is unsecured. In 2017, the Company issued
notes of RMBI1.5 billion (equivalent to HKS$1.7
billion), which is unsecured.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had
outstanding notes of RMB4.5 billion (equivalent to
HKS$5.1 biilion) (2017: RMB1.5 billion (equivalent
to HK$1.77 billion)) at fixed rate ranging from
4.1% to 4.9% per annum (2017: 4.4% per annum),
with maturity ranging from 2020 to 2021 (2017:
2020).

RMB4.5 billion (equivalent to HK$5.1 billion)
unutilised quota from National Association of
Financial Market Instifutional investors and RMB7
billion (equivalent to HK$7.9 billion) unutilised
quota from SSE will expire on 25 April 2019 and 19
June 2019 respectively.

Set out below is a comparison of camrying amounts
and fair values of the Company"s bonds issued not
measured at fair value.

Medium term notes; FRERLIE:
Carrying amounts PR 41E

Fair values ARl

As at 31

19. B
2018 2017
HKS$'600 HKS$'000
BHTR BHTFT
5,100,142 1,766.385

EAFTF 2017 ERFT T ART 1527 (HHTF
BM 174270) MERREE. T 2018 EH5E
7T ARM 302t (HETFHET 344278 MK
IR,

£E 20184E 12 A 31 H, XATRIMGFESAS
BURART 45 L u (FHETHT 514276)(2017
F£RI1SULART, HHTFEMR17.712570 , F
FIEEHR 4.1%-4.9% (2017: 4.4%), T 2020-2021 5
ZHA (2017: 2020 £E).

AR 45427 (HETET 51275 KA
PFHEF P EMRITMTIRE AN & RITMHREZ
WE, RART 7042 HYTHER 794270
kI HCHRET LA RITMBZ TR
T 20195 4 4 25 HX 20194E 6 A 19 H#11.

FXRFIE AT RE A RMHE TR RT HSF

IRiE P 52 R ERI ELEL .
2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
BHT BT
5,100,142 1766385
5.138,248 1,775,100

December 2018, the fair value #Z 20184 12 H 31 H, XM ERRTHEMNL

measurement of the above bonds issued was ARMMEHERTARMBEESEHE 1K, BN
classified under Level i of the fair value hierarchy BHME TR HRA.

as these amounts were based on quoted prices.
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31 December 2018

2018f£ 12 A 31 H

20. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 20, BIERTEB S0

Deferred income tax liabilities and related HIKATHALFBBABEMNMETINESER

temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying sk i F LA A H B B XS ARE NS
amounts, are attributable to the unrealised gain of B A S S .

the financial assets at tair value through profit or
loss.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as iﬁ}iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘[ﬁﬂﬁ?&isﬂﬂa?:

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Revaluvation of available-
for-sale investments

At R R A RS E
HEKS'000
- i T
At January 2017 20071 H1H 93,866
Deferred tax recognised in other BT AR SR DY YA
comprehensive income during the year (15,591}
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2018 2017 12H31EH BI85 1 H1H 78,275
Deferred tax recognised in profit or koss FEH AR AR IERTRR
during the year 17,883
Grosy deferved tax liabilities a1 31 December 20184212 431 HE R BRI A AW
2018 96158
21. SHARE CAPITAL 21, Mg&k
2018 2017
HRKS'000 HKS$'000
TG Bf¥R
Issued and fully paid: REGBEE.

340,517,400 ordinary shares 340,517,400 £ 2R 34051740 34051,740

There was no movement in the share capital during  RERBEFT LD Q0174 FT).
the year (2017: Nil).
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2018512 A 31 H

22. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

22,

AERBRIEE

Changes in liabilities arising from financing & BFiEshF=4: a0 M D)

activities

As 1 January 2017
Changes from finrancing cash flows

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as operating
cash flow

At 31 December 2017 and 1
Januarv 2018

Changes from financing cash tlows

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as operating
cash flow

At 31 December 2018

20174E1 H1H

FHEDEENR &R
)

FERA

SEEEAANFA

20174E12 8 31 H 20185
1818

FEiEa LR R

E.3 ]
Fanm

BEES AR

201812318
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Bank Bonds issued Loans from fellow

borrowings and accrued  subsidiaries and
and acerued interest  accrued interest
interest BATHBEH WRARFATHEK
BT ERR K BiAAR BEBHAHE
g ]S HKS$'000 HKS'000
HKS$'000 #TTR #HTR
BHETx
780.376 0.909,944
7,673,422 1,766,215 { 1.967.760)
35,276 41,143 125,103
( 31,440) - ( 113.762)
8.461.634 1,807,358 7.953,525
2,742,381 3,248,637 4,011,689
183,305 116,504 278,877
{ 402,308) -
10,985,015 5,172,499 12,244,091
IR AR A
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23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company did not have any material contingent
liabilities outstanding as at 3! December 2018
2017: Nil),

24. OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The Company leases offices under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms and renewal rights.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had future
aggrepate minimum iease payments under non-
canceliable operating leases as follows:

Within one vour 2N
In the second to fifth years, inclusive IFESE CF5Eh

25. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in notz 24 above, the Company had the
following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

23. BAEHAMR

R 2018 % 12 H 31 B, RATEEKHRSE
i (2017: T

24, SEHFAYE

B BT R AT 2 BRI R 4. M

BT E &SRS g .
HE 20184 12 A 31 H, AABAA A E
TR B RRH SRR R
2018 2017
HKS'H0 HKS'000
BHTE W T
31,730 20,325
34,462 19,426
_66,192 _39.751
25, K

WAL T LBIER 24 FURMBHE
HLE, RATHLL F AR

Coutracied, but not provided for, capital EL3 TR BT E U L REETERE

contributions payable to financial
assers at fair value through profit or loss i

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS'000
#RTI #fiT
HALN T NGRS AR
161,564 173,067
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26.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

26.

KRR

R FMBRERAG MR B FEEFL

these financial statements, the Company had the JiFHEF T TERENZS:
following transactions with related parties during
the year:
2018 2017
HKS$'000 HKS'000
WHTRT b 11 T
Interest income from: BN
Immediate holding company EHEFEGLT 7,456 9,805
Joint ventures ol A 216 215
A Rllow subsidiary RRFL™ 10,056 21,684
Subsidiarics FAH 153,633 142,650
Management fee received from (note (a)): FEBIA GEE@)) -
Joint ventures AE 4 48 48
Interest expense paid to: FE .
Fellow subsidiaries EREFAT (278871 (125,103)
Subsidiaries FATH { 31.985) ( 48.924)
Operating lease rental paid to: SETHETHIIE:
A fellow subsidiary {note (b)) &4 (GROD ¢ 30,068} { 26.889)
Building management fee paid to: Pl B R
Subsidiaries (note (c)) FHE (R { 4.18%) { 4,152)
Notes: 5.
(@ Management fee are received from joint (a) &N ASIR IR, TR M FR

®

©

ventures for the provision of tax filing,
record keeping and other supporting
services. The charges are based on terms as
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

Operating lease rental is paid to a fellow
subsidiary for the office space rental. The
rental is based on terms as mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

Building management fees are paid to a
subsidiary in respect of the management fee
incurred in the office space. The fees are
based on terms as mutuafly agreed between
the relevant parties.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Company bas given tinancial undertakings to
certain  loss-making  subsidiaries where  the
Company will not demand immediate repayment of
loans and receivables from these subsidiaries in
order 1o maintain them as a going concern.

(i) frausactions  with  the government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
state controlled entities

The State Council of the PRC government
directly and indirectly controls a significant
number of entitics through its government
authorities, ageucies, affiliates and other
State-controlled entitics. The Cotpany
enters into extensive hanking transactions
with these entities in the normal course of
business on commerciad terms,

Transactions conducted with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
State-controlled entities include purchase
and redemption of investment securities
issued by government agencies,
underwriting and distribution of Treasury
bonds issued by government agencies
through the Group’s branch network, foreign
exchange transactions and derivative
transactions, lending, provision of credit and
guarantees and deposit placing and taking.
(ii) Compensation of key
personnel of the Company

management

Key management personnel are those
persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company, directly or
indirectly, the directors of the Company.
Details are as follows:
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26. KERZH
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Ak A B U 55 5 8L 2
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26. RELATED PARTY 26. RBEZER ()
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
2018 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000
b 30 PTG
Fees ®H . .
Other emoluments HAE e 21.931 25208
Pension scheme contributions BARETHER 997 1.424
22,928 26,632
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 27. SWTHRAEH
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of BHEAMZ AT ST AR M RE SR
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting  F[FRF:

period are as follows:

2018 2

Financial assets

Loans to and reccivables from
subsidiaries Bl T2 8 8 Raon

Financial assets at fair value Iy il ag e oK
through profit or loss it AR RE I

Financial assets included in AR R Rk
prepayments, deposits, i, PSRRI
accounts and other receivables &R

Cash and cash equivalents REMP S

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 45

=
Financial assets at fair value through orl
Loans and receivables Financial
RERBFIYEE assets at fair value
HEKS$'000 through profit or
WHTT loss
ELAfetiH A
BAePSWB*
HKS'000
#HT
7.082.585
- 22982,070
46,575
2,835,307
9,964,467 22,982,070
s AR A F




BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

PR EAR AR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MHERBER

31 December 2018

201846 12 A 31 H

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 27. SMTRAEH (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
2018 (continued) 2018 ()
Financial liabilities o AL
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
CARER AR A TR A SR 5t
HKS'00)
#IfiT-e
Finunvial liabilities included in BEERAM TR TR
other payables and accruals FA a0 B B 471,582
Interest-bearing bank and other i B AT H 50 & A 8 5K
horrowings 23,047,855
Amouats due to subsidiaries It -4 7 E00 18,274,206
Bonds issued HATIRE 5,100,142
46,893,785
2017 2017
Financial assets SRR

Financial assets at fair value through profit ur loss

Loans and receivables Avaitable-for-sale

UK B R investments
HKS$'000 Ot H e B
EHTR HKS'000
- 3 o
Loans to and receivables from .. .
subsidiaries RO T 2 T hEE 3,779916 -
Available-tor-sale investments T i . 24190838
Financial assets included in prepayments, 2L /578 Ridic B 2 BRIV &
deposits, accounts and other 5, PR TR A Y
receivables a1 58,683
Cash and cash equivalents MR Tty 1,521,993
5,360,594 24,190,838
Financial liabilities R £ £
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
BARER LA H B AT SR St
HES'000
BTHTR
Financial liabilities included in other BEER MMM R RR
payvables and aceruals RS SR A 313,657
Interest-bearing bank and othzr HRAHRITE R Rt
Pporrowings 16.378.902
Amounts due io subsidiaries W 25 &) 27,091,495
Bonds issued RaThi% 1,766,385
45,550,439
BANK OF CHINA GROUPINVESTMENT LIMITED 66  HH#UEHRRERAT



BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

HRRFREARAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MERBEE

31 December 2018

2018412 B 31 B

28. TFAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of listed equity investments are
based on quoted market prices. The fair values of
unlisted equity investments designated at fair value
through profit or loss, which were previously
classified as available-for-sale investments, have
been estimated using a market-based valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on
industry. size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise
value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA™) multiple and
price to eamings (“P/E™) multiple, for each
comparable company identified. The multiple is
calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earning measure. The
trading multiple is then discounted for
considerations such as illiquidity and size
differences between the comparable companies
based on company-specific facts and circumstances.
The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted
equity investments to measure the fair value. The
directors believe that the estimated fair value
resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the statement of financial position, and
the related changes in fair valves, which are
recorded in profit or loss (2017: other
comprehensive income), are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of
the reporting period.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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i RBEE A A MHERE T SR E. 3
EHUARME R B EES T ARERRE
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{8, RIBIBASZ M E TS FI 2 R
B, REAETHHAGERGESE. SER
EREME. . AL E AT b ki A
7 (AT, FHEMSRAEEA T AR T
—ANE MRS, Blindb i E 5 B BETIR
BB AEEYE (Y“EVEBITDA™), THEE
(“P/E™. {H B0 i RERT AT AL
A4 BB B~ 2 TRAT . SR E I A5 AR
SEFLRIT, o BT LA 5] 2 [ B F s e AR
£RSREGER L. %S HEOT RN 8
AN 135 B FY 3 2 8 o b T RR AN 4% B i 28
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28. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 28. HGRTRAMNARMERASHERS
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL )
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of a significant unobservabie
inputs fo the valuation of financial instruments
Together with u quarntitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 December 2018 and 2017:

Significant Percentage or ratio

Valuation technigue unobservable input ringe

A EXRTURSY oK
Adjusted net asset value  Liquidity discouant 2018: 20%
SREHFESHHE Tz (2017:20%)

Discounted cash flow Liquidity discount 2018 10% -~ 15%

method Gtk (2N 7: 10%)
iR
Minority discount 2018: 15% - 200,
LY L (2017: 15%)
WACC 2018: 8.5% - 10.3%
PUEE S 1% N5 S (2017: 9.93%)

Markat mmparison Liguidity discount 2018: 30%
iTdaitig FEEITiL (2017: 15% - 30%)
Mavket tultiples 2018:0.73
Tk i (2017:0.76 - 2.51)
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WAL 2018 4F 12 ] 31 R 2017402 1 31 g
st Hl L AL G P Y SR AR T B B B B
WU S AT S

Sensitivity of the input to fair value
AxiESHERE

10% (2017: 10%} inerease in discount rate
would result in decrease i taiv value hy
HK$310,000 (2017:HKS3 14.000).

10% Q01T 10%) H7 - SIS 5 B S e iy
IR M3 L0.0009E (2017, 5311000
70)

H% (2017 10%) inerease in discount rate
would result in decrease in fair value by
HESZIO 28000 (2017:  HKS$K7.384, Unm
1028 {2017 1096) 1L AN g S AR 0 gl
A7 sk ol 18 73 210,248,000 75 2017 . T
87.384,0007)

1026 (2017 10%) increase in disgonnt mte
would result in decreuse in fajr value by
HKS$313,184,000 (200 7: HKS87.384.0000
162502017 1094) 177 UL BHGE S S5 f i
W 33084000 5 2017 A
87.384,000.1)

10% (2017: 10%) increase in WACC would
result in decrease in fair value by
HIKS5.642,031,000 (2017:
HKS1,183.907.000)

1092017 10%) AL 33 F A i
Lo QN Ty R (T e R
362,031 00050 (2017: HETTL183,.907.000
70)

10% {2017; 101%) increase in discount rate
would result in decrease in fair valuc by
HK$22,290.000 (2017: HK$29,39] L0035
10%(2017: 10%04; ik il ar g
(1 6k 72 78 10 22,290,000 7 2017 :
20.391,0007%)

-.-.
A
ik T
4=

Inerease in market multiples by 0% (2017:
107%a) would result I increase in tiv value by
HEKS$5.201,000 (2017: HKS94,119,000)

10%(2017; L) TSR S S e B AN o
e 481 Kt B3 15,201,000 06 Q017 B
94,119,0005T)

FHRRE SR ARAT
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28. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 28. SWMTANAARMMEERARMEESR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (%)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value A 42F &M LEMNARMETRERDEIIR
measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial #pnTF .

instruments:
Assets measured at fair value: LN BHE T BT
Fair value measurement using
AfiEiHRRR
Significant
Significant unobservable
Quoted prices observable inputs
in active inputs (Level 3)
markets (Level2) EXFAR
(Levell) BATHARS H"EN
HEKTTERM ﬁt (=R Total
(F—B&) CGR=ES) & Bit
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'0600 HKS'000
wHTR HHEF wHTT Bhfx
As at 31 December 2018 AEE20185E12H31 H
Financial assets at fair value U2 rtrEitEER
through profit or loss IR AE RS
e 642 - 220981,428 22982070
As at 31 December 2017 #E2T7FIZANH
Available-for-salc investments T i 54 H 1,396 - 15313942 15315338

Management has assessed that the fair values of FREHEFIATEEASEND BEER
cash and cash equivalents, financial assets included i % FCAh R0, #98 RFAHERIR 1) SR
in the prepayments. deposits, accounts and other = g7l FAF PR EET . €5 E LT
receivables, loans to and receivables from : =
b ] b . TR R IR # A R R it R RIT R R
subsidiaries, financial liabilities included in other A RATHER RN T ATERID KA R

payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, bonds issued and amounts due to HHESIRERHEAE.

subsidiaries approximate to their catrying amounts.
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28. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Duriug the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level | and Level 2 and
HK$8,875,500,000 transferred into or out of Level
3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
{(2017: Nil). The movements in fiir value
measurement within Level 3 during the year were
as follows:

28. SMTHMALMERLLMMERE

(&)

EMEFNAGRRREE - BRGNS _Rm >
BIATA A RS, T 8,875.500,000 72
HABE=RE (2017%: 1) . KERL M
HiH 85 BB AR R R R,

2018 2017
HK¥'000 HKS'000
i BHTR
Financial assets at fair value through profit CA% et (T i B K 3R Eh
or luss (2017: avaituble-tor-sale HARE SRR
Investments): (2017: AT
B -
At 1 January S 13,313,942 11,568,194
Ertect of adoption ot HKFRS 9 - Transfer -1k ¢ EE A
from uvailabiz-for-sale investments at WD 80 WAk
cost BELANE S o L AT
LA 8,875,500 -
At 1 January (restated) EMAT CER 24,189,442 11,568,394
Total loss recognised in profit or loss AR S s { 1,506,088) -
Total loss recognised in other AR A b A
comprehensive income EH - L 429,634)
Additions TN 437,140 4,241,538
Disposal W (139,066) ( 66336)
At 31 December SEFR AR 22981 428 15,313,942

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
price risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the
Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the risk
management and compliance division under
policies approved by the board of directors. The risk
management and compliance division identifies,
evaluates and monitors financial risks in close co-
operation with the Company's operating units. The
board provides guidelines for overall risk
management, covering specific areas including
market risk. price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The risk management and compliance division
reports to the management on a timely basis in order
to mitigate risk exposures,

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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29.

(M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Market risk

(a)

Currency risk

The Company operates mainly in
Hong Kong and in Mainland China
and is exposed to currency risk arises
from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the
Renminbi and United States Dollar.
Currency risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The
principal objective of currency risk
management is to monitor net foreign
exchange gains/losses. The Company
cosures that the net exposure is
minimised by closely monitoring the
fluctuation of the currencies. The
Company analyscs the sensitivity of
the fluctuation of each currency on its
profit and loss and equity on a
monthly basis. The Company has
certain investments denominated in
foreign currency, whose net assets are
exposed  to  foreign  currency
translation rigk.

Currency exposure arising from these
investments is managed primarily
through borrowings denominated in
the United States Dollar. Since the
Hong Kong Dollar is pegged to the
United States Dollar, the Company's
exposure to foreign currency risk in
respect of the bank balances
denominated in United States Dollars
is considered to be minimal.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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29. FINANCIALRISK MANAGEMENT 29, £RtRR%H HIFEBE (40
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued) '
(i)  Market risk (continued) @ TTERAER (8
(a) Currency risk (continued) (@ CERE G
The following table demonstrates the TFTEA-TERSIFE, FAEH
sensitivity at the end of the reporting JERE CRETF TR
period to a reasonably possible change ARMETE) BALATREME
in the Renminbi exchange rate, with \ > S 3] AN 46
all other variables held constant, of the {éﬁﬁi gg;&ﬂgg%;gg
Company’s profit after tax (due to g
changes in the fair value of monetary F BB HE U35 (928 B A7 ‘EH‘JP}
assets and liabilities) and the Tl 2sAR %) X ARMICERN
Company's equity (foreign exchange -~ S FR T AT BE R ZR 1L AU,
gains/losses on  transaction of Hih 284 HFR %,
Renminbi  denominated  equity
securities classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss).
Increase/(decrease) in  Increase/{(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
exchange rate in profit after tax in equity*
% HKS million HKS million
i BERR W+
HimioRD) D) HRD)
% WHEAR BHREA
2018
If the Hong Kong dollar . 3
weakens against the mRE TR AR
Renminbi CEEH 10 13 1541
if the Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against the RN ART
Renminbi CEAE (10) (1 (1.541)
2017
IF the Hong Kong dollar .
weakens against the WRETHART
Renminbi CERE 10 13 1.730
If the Hong Kong dollar .
strengthens against the WREHH ARG
Renminbi LA (10) (13) (1.730)
* excluding retained profits
* TR RS
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29,

@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b

Price risk

The Company is currently holding
quoted seeurities for medium and long
term investinent purposes that are
exposed to price fluctuation. Price risk
is controlled by and independently
supervised by Risk Management and
Compliance Division, The overall
comprehensive risk control
mechanism  aims at minimising
Company's market risk exposure to a
manageabie and acceptable level.

The Company monitors its long-term
quoted investiments through  strict
procedures, starting from selection
process 10 final exit execution. The
fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) is based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of
quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. At 31 December
2018, a 3 percentaye variance in listed
equity prices from the vear end price
would impact the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through
protit or loss listed equity positions by
HK$0.03 million (31 December 2017:
HKS0.07 million). For those financial
assets qt fair value through profit or
loss considered impaired, the impact
would be taken to the statement of
profit or loss.
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29, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29, &AM E HIFMER (8
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued) @ TiEHERE (8
(b)  Price risk {continued) () HrERE (&
If the market for a financial asset is not R — R &R BT B AN AR
active (e.g. for unlisted securities), the (Fm, e LiES) . KA TEE
Company established fair value by EREEEABEARIME, X
using valuation techniques. These EEEROEERABENATR
include the use of recent arm's length £. SRXBER FEFEHTIA
transactions, reference to other S _ :
instruments that are substantially the 47 9L 42 I S BT 09 B P A LA
same, discounted cash flow analysis B, BAAMERTEFRAEIR
and net asset value model. making Gl g ulod Bkl kil PN
maximum use of market inputs and 5, Xk eRalTEEHE—
relying as little as possible on entity- K, SHTHREEMHE—IK. FH
At gt e ot LR ST R, i
investments will be valued quarterly . N
and all investments will be valued ﬁgﬁgg% gﬁgﬁﬁgﬁ(-‘? L
each year. All valuation results are g el H °
compared with the  existing
investment amounts and discrepancies
will be calculated and checked with
the investment provisions so as to
make sure the overall provision is
maintained at an appropriate level.
(¢) Interest rate risk (c) FIEAK
The Company's exposure to the risks iR ER 18 Frik, ARFMN
of change in market interest rates WFARSNRERTNARRETA
e B BRI BN SR A AT
oans to and receivable from Al @A b -~
subsidiaries, short-term borrowings ggﬁgﬁﬂfﬂgﬁ;gﬁgi
from fellow subsidiaries and banks as et A g
detailed in note 18 to the financial AT L FA R, BEE
statements. Loans to and receivables FIR BT R T2 B R R
from subsidiaries and borrowings FEEATEIRA R EFI B R .
issued at variable rates expose the
Company to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Loans to and receivable from
subsidiaries and borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Company to fair
value interest-rate risk.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29, LA MREE B FRBE 4

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
()  Macket risk (continued) (i) TR G

(¢)  Interest rate risk (continued) () FZERAS &)
The following table demonstrates the FRIGRT RACGNRE Gitig
sensitivity to a reasonably possible FHE SIS S BB A8t
change in interest rates, with all other TR R 354 SR A R B B
variables held constant, of the iR, }t_{mgﬁ RIS, '

Company's profit before tax (through
the impact on floating rate

botrowings).
Increase/{decrease)
in profit before tax
HRKS'0M)
BHA
Basis point b YTt )]
2 ERTR
2018
[ncrease in interest rate FZE 25 (44,124)
Decrease in interest rate PR e 25 44,124
2017
increase in interest rata ESES 4 F 25 (49,031)
Decrease in interest rate B g nh b 25 49031
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

(ii) Credit risk

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable
to loans and advances to its investee companies, the
undertakings given to those investee companies and
deposits with banks and financial institutions.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Risk management and compliance
division assess as the credit quality of the investee
companies on a case-by-case basis taking into
account of its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
limits and approval by the investment committee
and board of directors. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company's
loans and receivables ar¢ mainly to joint ventures,
associates and subsidiaries and the Company
considers that credit risk to loans and receivabies is
minimal.

The Company also considers that credit risk
attributable to the deposits with banks and financial
institutions are minimal as a large portion of the
deposits are placed at its fellow subsidiaries.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of the financial assets in the
statement of financial position. Collateral is
generally not sought on these assets.

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

29. &RNRERERNBOE (8

(i EHRE

EARAHEARREIERETHHERATH
B HK . XX R T A S BT aE UL
ERIT SEHMIANER. T BEHE T HRAK
%, REWEERARRED. RETENEHE
BIER SRR UESREIEEEK, EHITE
BREATNEARE. $RARRHTNEL,
PLIZ S A SIS IRERHGE S E . 8 A
REMERZREMEE.

B 20184EK 2017 E 12 B 31 £, AABRHE
HERMKHIEERRBES R ATV RELS
b BF A, HAA AR R AR AHE
FA R A -

BFRBAERHETHETAH, AR HIA
F 5 RIT RERPUITE T KBS B4R .

B4R 2 L Y S B P (0 K TR (R T R K
HERREE N, BHFXSREARERRYE.
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29.

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company
may not be able to generate sufficient cash
resources (o settle its obligations in full as
they fall due or can only do so on terms that
are matecially disadvantageous.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities. Where necessary, the Company
would issue new share capital or obtain
funding from its immediate holding
company or fellow subsidiaries, The
Company's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liguidity requirements
to ensure that it maiotains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The mawrity profile of the Company's
financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments. is as tollows:

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

29.

(iif)
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g ah e AR

WA R RAE R A R R BB H
o F T S0 2 0 30 100 08 o il b s
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Other payables and aceruals

bR BT R L R A
Intcrest-bearing bank and other borrowings
THEL AT T 8 R LA

Amounts due to subsidiarics

BifTF 2 "3

Bonds issued

RiTHis

Other pavables and accruals

Fofo R o BT B L $ A
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
it BRRIT iE R R b K

Amounts due to subsidiaries
SITErS F e

Bonds issued

RiT@A

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

29, &RRAREHE HIFRBR (B

(i) FshEREE (8D

2018

Less than
On demand 1year 1to5years Total
B DF 1E 1Z&54 Bit
HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BTTR% WHFT HBETR  BHTR
s 471,642 - 471,642
- 23047855 23,047.855
16,925,926 1.348,280 - 18.274.206
= - 5,100,142 5,100,142
16,925,926 24,867,777 5.100,142 46,893,845

2017

Less than
On demand 1year 1toSyears Total
B ST 15 1855 Bit
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'0D0
#BHTRT BHTR ®’HEFR b i
313.657 - 313,657
16,378,502 - 16,378,902
26,864,775 1,134 225,586 27091495
- - 1.766,385 1,766,385
26,864.775 16,693,693 1.991,971 45,550,439
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29,

(iv)

Adjusted liabilities
lotal ¢quity

Fotal capital

Gearing ratio

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Capital management

The Company's objectives in managing
capital are to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concem in order to provide returns
for shareholder and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

(n order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholder,
return capital to shareholder, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistetit with others in the industry. the
Company menitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio, Fhis ratio is caleulated as total
liabilities divided by total capital  (i.e.
adjusted liabilities plus total equitv). The
adjusted liabilities equals to total liabilities
stated in the statement of financial position,
exeluding tax payables and amounts due to
subsidiaries. Total equity equals total equity
stated in the statement of financial position.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 were as follows:

FWBHE
HRRREET

BEE

Wby

BANK Of CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

29,

(iv)

80

SRR 2E E AR (&)

Tk

AT SRR H bR 0 R e
BN, CIBARRMEER: Haine
ARG, LRSREA R,

BT ORI AR N, 24T WTHS
R (] B A S BRI EL L MR O
A AT HERS B8 e BF e BB IS M g

SR — 8, R AR T a
P IR A LR i
R E A ¢ B A R A
BB A o S ST 5
BEEREYE S, R T R R
TR, RN G BT B IR
IR MR AR A i S,

HE 2018 ££M1 2017 4F 12 A 31 B
At .
2018

HK$'000
L di

28,715,797
48,637,351

2017
HKS'000
BT

18,537,284
47,691,168

77,353,148

66,228,452

3%

28%
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. FAAIMWA

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries #ZE AR & MK, EEREMFLAEAIIRD

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: .

(2) Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the (a) T HEBEMBOFASIRUT, £HANE

ordinary shares in which are held by the B
Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
KR

Directly beld by the Directly held by
Company (and/or its subsidiary{(and/

Name of the Company nominee) or its nominee)  Company's
L9ER e TFaH effective
(in alphabetical order) (BBRRAAN) (BEHREA) holding
(ST iR B=E, % HENAT oyivdzaci)
Asia Success Invesiments Limited 100% - 100%
BEBHRRLE

Asia Wish Limitad 100% - 100%
EBHEAS

Asian Dynamic Limited 100% - 100%
HEERRAE

Best Valug Limited 100% . 100%
SHRARLE

BOC China Fund Limited 100% - 100%
i A E IR A

Briiliant Quality Limited 100% 100%
HIFHRAHE

Capital Famous Limited 100% - 100%
BEARLT

Capital International Limited - 100%% 100%
WA EEER A

Champion Charm Holdings Limited - H0% 100%
BRI RLA F]

Changxing Software Company Limited 100% - 100%
FHEBERGHRAT

China Grace Limited 100% - 100%
THARLT

China Harvest Limited 100% 100%
HEARAE

China Wise International Limited - 100% 100%
HEERER2T

Dynamic Way Limited 100% - 100%
WIHHMRAT

East Gain Limited 100% - 100%
HEFRALT

Essential Development Limited 100% - 100%
HRERARASE

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 81 AN AR AT

Principal activities

Investrnent holding
#HEAE
Investment holding
g aE
Investment holding
A
Investment holding
BE LA
Inactive

k377N

Investment holding
ERLAF
Investment holding
BHELAH
Investment holding,
BHEAE
Investment holding
B AT
Investment holding
BELR
{nvestment holding
BEAR
Investment holding
g aE]
Investment holding
#EAE
Investment holding
BEAE
Investment holding
B as
Investment holding
#EAHE
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30.
(continued?

(@)  Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the (a)

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

ordinary shares in which are held by the
Company as follows: (coutinued)

Name of the Company
kS
(in alphabetical order)

BRI

Kingster Limited

BEHRAT

Modern Honour Limited

BHIRAF

Sinosun Industrial Limited

o Rl R 40

Smart Treasure Limited

HEEARAF

Star Alpha Limited

SR AN

Suceess Prospect Limited

REHHRAR

Sun Chung Asset Management Limited

TN G

Sun Chung Property Management
Company Limited

A ERERAR

Top Sharp Limited

RUEFRAH

Treasure Stur invesanents Limited

ke e B

Linion Growth Limited

EHARA A

United Field Limited

LR A

Union Wealth Investments Limited

W EHB AT

Victory Score Limited

BUH R AT

Vision Focus Limited

KEEARALAHE

Wellink Investments Limited

EERETERAHF

Winfull Properties Limited

ICEHFHRAF

Win Season Limited

RITHERAF

30.

TAFAHER (4

TEBEM T A LW F,

JEHEEL (8

Percentuge of equity

SR

Directly held by the

Company (and/er
its nominee)
YA
(BBRRBA)
HERNT

100%

i00%

1002
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
1002
100%0

100%
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Directly held by
subsidiary{and/or

its nontinee) Company's

FAE  effective

(UEHAREA)  nolding
=k 5 00 24

- 100 %

- 100%

100% 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

100% 100%

- 100%

100% 100,

- 100%

- 100%

100% 1009,

- 100G

- 101,

- 100%

. 100%

- 100%

HEURIO B TR 2

=50 HE

Principal activities

FELS

Investment holding
v o
Investment holding
b4 NG
Investment holding
R A
Investment holding
Al
Invesiment holding
Eil 3 A N
Investment holding
i ST
Investment holding

HERaH

Property management
sarvice and investmend

Pl PP
Investment holding
Investment holding

52w
lavestment hoiding
b 5
Investment holding
B AT
Investment holding
K o7y
Fnvestment holding
AL
Investment holding
L #
Investment holding
#HAE
Investment holding
i s oA
Jnvestment holding

it 2]
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FRREANHELEMGNTFLIRRT

Principal activities
>4

Investment holding
#RAT
Investment holding
"/EKAH
Investment holding
#EAH
Investment holding
BHAE
Investment holding
BELF
Investment holding
rEAHT
Investment holdiag
"EAF
Investment holding
AT
Investment holding
#BRAE
Investment holding
BEAF
Investment holding
BREAF
Investment holding
BREAE
Investment holding
fELd
Investment holding
#wEaAH
Investment holding
H AT
Investment holding
#EAT
Investment holding
#HEAE]
Investment holding
#RAH
Investment holding
BEAR
Investment holding
#EAH

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES  30. TFAFMR (4
(continued)
(b) Subsidiaries incorporated in the British (b)
Virgin Islands, the ordinary shares in which T, AABEEH AT EES.
are held by the Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
KB
Direetly held by the  Directly held by
Company (and/or  subsidiary(and/
Name of the Company its nominee)  or its nominee)
L7EH BAH FAH Company's
(in alphabetical order) (BBRERBAN) (BHARIEA) effective holding
RZEC T FAUF) HEEH HERH 24
Acefair Holdings Corp. 100% 100%
Alwin Enterprises Corp. 100% - 100%
Aston Assets Holding Ltd. 100% 100%
Bestmind Assets Management Limited 100% - 100%
HEESERETRAR
Hillion Crown Investments Lid. 100% - 100%
Blooming Target Investments Ltd 100% B 100%
Brilliant Choice Asset Holdings Ltd 100% 100%
Cultural Developments Limited 100% 100%
Delight Sky Limited 100% 100%
BRATRAR
Express Glory Enterprises Lid. 100% 100%
Fulland Enterprises Corp. 100% - 100%
Gabo Hoidings Inc. 100% 100%
Gold Fortune Management Corp. 100% - 100%
Gold Vision Enterprises Ltd. 100% 100%
Goldway Financial Corp. 100% - 100%
Goldway Investment Holdings Corp. 100% 100%
Heritage Express Holdings Limited 100% - 100%
Lucky Star International Holdings Inc. 100% - 100%
Maxi Joy Investments Lid. 100% 100%
Metrowin Holdings Inc. 100% 100%
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3 0.
(continued)

®

(continued)

Name of the Company

A8 EH
(in alphabetical order)
I F R

Polima Corp.

Power Big Holdings Limited
BARRER AN

Power Essence [nvestruonts Ll
Shining Beams levestnents Lid,
Shiny Way Holdings Inc.

Silver Treasure Enterprises Ltd,

Star Team Enterprises Inc.

Sunny Dragon Investments
Limited

MR E AT 4 )

Top Leader Finance Lid.

HHHWEERAT

Toptnark Assets Ltd,
Top Rank Management Ltd.
Treasure Ascent Investments Ltd.

Victory Luck Investinents
Limited

SRR R A

Will Rich Investments Limited

M EAmen

Megu Rey Assets Holdings Corp,

Million Success Enterprises Corp.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries incorporated in the British (b)
Virgin Islands, the ordinary shares in which
are held by the Company as follows:

30.

TARMR (8

T IR B4 4GB S
By RS i ey

Percentage of equity
Exd 4z
Directly lield by the Directly held by
Company (and/or its  subsidiaryv{and/or
nominee) its noaninee)
BAH FAF Company's
(RIBFACEAN)  (B/BIUREA)  effective holding
EH#RE HERH FRELS
- 100% 10t
100% L00%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
- 100% 100,
- 100% 100%%
- 100% 100%
100% - 100%
100%, - 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
- 100% 100%%
100% 100%
100% 100%
84 PHULETR B RAT
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g G

R &8

PREED
KR

Principal activities

Investment holding
i nE
lnvestment holding
 FRERONT)
Investmeni holding
PR
Investment holding
W
Investment holding
figh g
Investment holding
RELH
Investment holding
£ A
Investnrent holding
2 Sy

Investment holding
BrRas
Investment holding
s k|
Investment holding
i N
Investment holding
#HAF
Investment holding
3 INE

Investment holding
w’HELT
Investment holding
BT
Invesimem holding
fibp fval
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

() Subsidiaries established in the PRC, with (c)

equity held by the Company are as follows:

Name of the Company

LTER

AEREAKXFERAT

AR AT
R THRAT
e LR E

FEGMRRRETTMA T

PR B T EERAY

ERH I RTRAR AT
hEliEis (R EETEERAR
EMRnfETETRAE
WP ECITRAR AT
AT R H IR AH
MRBLRE (R ARAH

30.

FATMR (4

EifcZ-payon i 8
Percentage of equity
v 4204
Directly held by
the Compsany Directly held by
(and/or its  subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nominee) Company's
ﬂ{h\ﬁ ?ﬁﬂ effective
(BRRRREA) (BEBRRAREA)  holding
EERT BB REUH
100% 100%
100% - 100%%
52.7% 47.3% 10883
100% 100%
- 100% 100%
85% 85%
100% 100%
100% 100%
- 100% 100%
= 100% 100%
- 100% 100%
- 100% 100%
85 ChRKERRERARN
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FREKBERHTATESMT, £2

Principal activities
Al

Leasing service of office

and apartment
SFRRARMR
Investment holding
#uan

Hotel Services
RS

Hotel services
BIERE
Investment holding
BRAE

Financial asset management

BEaE
Investment holding
"EAH
Investment holding
#RAH
Investment holding
#wEAH
Investment holding
#iEAH
Investment holding
#EAE
Investment holding
#Hw AR
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. FATFMER B
{continued)
(d)  Subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman () THEHRLEMGTAEEEMT, &
Islands, the ordinary shares in which are held AT FHE I REEREL
by the Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
i 424
Directly held by the Directly held by
Company (undfor its subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nomines)
BAH AT Coinpany's
Name of the Company (RIFSRHEA)  (RU/BHEARBA)  effective holding Principal activitivs
2AEK EEFH HERH Feits EELH
Sky Splendor Limited 100% 1005 Tavestment holding
(¢)  Subsidiary incorporated in Macau, the (e) TEINEMOTARMEEMT, AF%E
ordinary shares in which are held by the BRI R L
Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
e 04297
Directly hetd by the Directly held by
Company (and/or its subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nomines)
LN Fad Company's
Name of the Company (RIBEREA)  (REEHAREA)  effective holding Principal activities
AT EH HEggy HERH BRI L%
BT EETREERAR 75% 75%  Investment holding
A

(H)  Subsidiary incorporated in Singapore, the (f)
ordinary shares in which are held by the

Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
S ;1. =
Directly held by the Directly held by

TRINGER S T AEERN T, ARs
SR IPQFE R ] e v

Company (and/or its subsidiury(and/or
nominee) its nomince)
A5 TAF Company's
Name of the Company (RBHAREA) (BERHRHEA)  effective holding Principal activities
AT ER HENE HERE kil 4= EE%
BOC Aviation Limited 70% 7%  Leasing of aircraft
FEATHEARATE RITREAK
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES  30. TARHR (&
(continued)
(¢) Subsidiaries incorporated in the United (g) TREFMNFAFESLT, FL8F
States of America, the ordinary shares in HHREERE:
which are held by the Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
REHH
Directly held by the Directly held by
Company (and/or its  subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nominee)
gl FAF Company's
Name of the Company (RREAREA) (R/BRINARTA)  effective holding Principal activities
HERK HERT o440 ERE
7BP Owner, LLC 100% 100% Investment holding
BEAF
(h) Subsidiary incorporated in Barbados, the (h) TEESHFMNTANERMT, £2
ordinary shares in which are held by the B 8RR
Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
RS
Directly held by the Directly held by
Company (and/or its  subsidiary{and/or
nominee) its nominee)
|47 *&ﬁ Company's
Name of the Company (BREARAA) (BR/EHEAREA)  effective holding  Principal activities
AT EEEE HERE SR FEUS
Exchange Realty SRL 100% 100% Investment holding
#EAE
(i)  Subsidiaries incorporated in Luxembourg, (i) TFHAHREEMPTFAREELT. £AH
the ordinary shares in which are held by the Eoy SRy SR g
Company as follows:
Percentage of equity
RS
Directly held by the Directly held by
Company (andfor its  subsidiary(and/or
nominee) its nominee)
BATH FAF Company's
Name of the Company (BRERBA) (BUERHAEA)  effective holding  Principal activities
AREHK HERE HEEH EEVS
Brilliant Quality Limited, 100% 100% Investment holding
Luxembourg Branch #EANEH
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31. PARTICULARS OF JOINT 3. AEMHSR

VENTURES

Particulars of the Company's materia! joint Fu] EEAESWIEFNT:

ventres are as follows:

Place of Percentage of

Particulars of registered registration/

Name of the Company capital/issued shares held incorporation
A OES TR R R AT i A b ip:cY<d
LA EREE AN RA T uss1 PRC
FILLT B

Whiand Investnents I Limtied USs$2 BVI

FA2L REEEE

ownership
interest

i 2]

42%
42%

5ty
0%

Percentage of
ownership
interest

R

45%
45%

32. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATE 32, ECEhN
Particulars of the Company's material associate is as RATZTEBHE S WG T
follow:

Place of
Particulars of registered registration/

Name of the Company capitalfissued shares held incorporation

[FEK EHBRRCRITRA M
IR RRRETFETRAT LISD28,000,000 PRC

FFG28.000,0005 &

33. OPERATING SEGMENT 33. LENEEE

INFORMATION

Management reviews the performance and allocate 23] f 3558 8 g ¢ 0k, WIEEHR

Principat
activities

ERE

lnvestment
holding

Investment

holding
REAF

Principal
activities

EEVFE

Refinancing
Bahd

HERH

resources on the basis of the Company as a whole JHE LT A -~ RUE LM L R R S

as the Company's resources are integrated. NEMER
Accordingly, no operating segment information is
presented.
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33. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued) 33. SBEHBEAEE (&)

(@ Revenue from other sources () tfhlb&idN
2018 2017
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EHFx EHTF5
Hong Kong ik 3,290,292 1.497.297
Mainland China R hE 533,281 406,184
Macau #n 1,893 1.667
Other countries Hih 265,112 132,333
4,090.578 2,037,481

The revenue from other sources information above BLEA 2RSS B £ 00K Ml B %

rE) ) j'“,y

is based on the locations of the customers. FHIE 535
(b) Non-current assets (b))  dEdEEEe

2018 2017
HKS$'00n HXS'¢00
BHFT WHTT
Hong Kong Fik 15,558,350 45,764,432
Muinland China R EXES 5.378,137 5,487.591
Other comtries HAh 11,742,045 12,668,049
62,678,532 63,920,072

The non-current asset information above is based on U EARARAFESE WK 377 k-
the locations of the assets and excludes financial WX 533, AaEemTA.
instruments.

34. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 4. BERHMEHE
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and XM HREF 26 APR 2918 TEHLSFhI;E
authorised for issue by the board of directors on BRER.

25 APR 201

BANK OF CHINA GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED 89  Hug# R EEERAT






